
Page 1 of 3 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2016  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

16C‐0064. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

16C‐0065.  Roll Call 

16C‐0066.  Establishment of Quorum 
16C‐0067.  Pledge of Allegiance 
16C‐0068.  Reports of Standing Committees 
16C‐0069.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
CONSENT AGENDA CA16‐04 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
16C‐0070. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of February 8, 
2016 

4‐11 

 
16C‐0071. 

  
Approval of Contract with White Construction for the Installation of a Roof 
on the Turner Hall Kitchen 

12 

 
16C‐0072. 

  
Appointment of Todd Lincoln as the City of Galena Representative to the 
Board of Directors for the New Unified Destination Marketing Organization 

‐‐ 

 
16C‐0073. 

  
Approval of Request by Galena Earth Week to Use City Hall on Saturday, 
April 16 and Friday, April 20 Earth Week Public Presentations, “Lazy 
Sustainable Gardening for Busy People” and “The Garden of Eat’n” 

‐‐ 

 
16C‐0074. 

 
Approval of the Fourth Annual Midwest Medical Center Sprint into Spring 
Fun Run/Walk at Rec Park and on the Galena River Trail, April 9, 2016 

13 

Page 1 of 57



Page 2 of 3 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

16C‐0075. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on an Agreement with Jo Carroll Energy for 
Use of the City Owned Right‐of‐Way for Fiber Optic Broadband Infrastructure 

 
14‐19 

 
16C‐0076. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Request by Jo Carroll Energy for a Letter of 
Support for an Application to the Cool and Connected USDA Grant Program 

 
14‐19 

 
16C‐0077. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Proposal by the Galena Area Chamber of 
Commerce to Modify the Terms of the Lease for the Depot   

 
20‐25 

 
16C‐0078. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request by xXx Racing to Conduct the 
Sixth Annual Tour of Galena Bicycling Race, June 10‐12, 2016 

 
26‐34 

 
16C‐0079. 

   
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Article 6, Chapter 154.601 of the 
Galena Zoning Ordinance to Permit Pervious Paving Surfaces   

 
35‐49 

 
16C‐0080. 

 
Warrants  

50‐57 

 
16C‐0081. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

 
16C‐0082. 

 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
16C‐0083. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
16C‐0084. 

 
Motion for Executive Session Including:  
 

 Section 2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters and deliberations 
concerning salary schedules. 

 Section 2 c) (11)—Pending, probable or imminent litigation 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

 
16C‐0085. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 57



Page 3 of 3 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. March 3  8:30 A.M.  Turner Hall, 115 S. Bench Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. March 3  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. March 9  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. March 14  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Deer Committee   Wed. March 16   6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, February 18, 2016 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

Page 3 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 08 FEBRUARY 2016 
 
 

16C-0039 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 08 February 2016.  
 
16C-0040– ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Westemeier and Renner 
 
16C-0041– ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
16C-0042– PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
16C-0043 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
Turner Hall Committee - The committee met last Thursday morning.  They reviewed the work 
completed such as countertops, mirrors, faucets, cleaning, painting and scrubbing.  The hall is 
looking very nice.  According to Janelle, we have 43 bookings for next year and one booking for 
2018.  Fach distributed a copy of the meeting minutes.   
 
Renner was pleased with the work to date and noted they have two years of projects lined up at 
this time.   
 
Unified Destination Marketing Committee– The committee met last Tuesday night which they 
hope will be the final meeting of the joint committees.  An item for action is on tonight's agenda.  
The County Board will be taking possible action tomorrow evening as well.   
 
16C-0044 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chris Hamilton, Visitgalena.org – Hamilton gave a report on VisitGalena.  Occupancy rates 
were at 43 percent for 2014 and went to 48 percent in 2015.  This was nearly 11,000 more room 
nights.  They have had over 40,000 contacts for information.  The information kiosks are 
complete.  The lights were installed.  Website activity has been flat.  They have put together an 
extensive plan to work on that.  They are holding off for a decision on the singular voice plan.  
Hamilton just returned from a 10 day travel show.  They had 600 people sign up for the e-
newsletter.  They worked with 27 organizations last year and are at 64 already this year.  
Hamilton shared a copy of the newest Illinois State Travel Guide.  VisitGalena has secured the 
back cover for every issue.   
 
Eric Dregne, Prairie Ridge - Dregne advised he is present should the council have any 
questions on their request.   
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
City Attorney Nack swore in those wishing to testify.   
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer, to open the Public Hearing on the first 
amendment to the Annexation Agreement, dated January 27, 2010, between the City of Galena 
and Joe Borsdorf, James Sullivan, Alexander Phillips, James Richards, Jo Ann Richards, or their 

Page 4 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

grantees, heirs, successors or assigns, for a 33-acre subdivision at the intersection of US Route 
20 and Powder House Hill Road in Galena.        
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  

 
16C-0045 – PUBLIC HEARING ON THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENT, DATED JANUARY 27, 2010, BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND JOE 
BORSDORF, JAMES SULLIVAN, ALEXANDER PHILLIPS, JAMES RICHARDS, JO ANN 
RICHARDS, OR THEIR GRANTEES, HEIRS, SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS, FOR A 33-ACRE 
SUBDIVISION AT THE INTERSECTION OF US ROUTE 20 AND POWDER HOUSE HILL 
ROAD IN GALENA 
 
Testimony:  Julie Hellman spoke on behalf of her clients, Alex Phillips and Jim Sullivan.  
Hellman advised the original Annexation Agreement entered into in 2010 with the then owners of 
33 acres located at Powder House Hill Road and Highway 20 placed the financial and practical 
burden on the owners at that time to provide infrastructure for that property.  Certain events have 
taken place since that annexation agreement that make it impractical and contrary to the goals 
and use of the land.  One is Gateway Park to the north.  The second is development has gone to 
the west and not to the east.  Sullivan has worked hard to try to get development into this 33 
acres.  They would like to amend the annexation agreement to be more in tune with the 
conservation theme.  The owners feel it is impractical to force that infrastructure in there as they 
are not sure what will happen to the land.  They understand Gateway Park is near and dear to 
everyone’s heart and want to make sure any development is in connection with the park.  They 
are extremely committed to the conservation theme.  A couple of ideas is to have a deed 
restriction for current and future buyers which would go into a stewardship fund to be used for 
Gateway Park.  They would bring in a landscape architect to develop the land so it follows the 
same concept as Gateway Park.  Next week another 80 acres will be sold to the Conservation 
Foundation.  This expansion shows how committed they are to keeping the green use.   
 
Linda Pluym – Pluym voiced concerns with the road.  She is concerned with its access to 
Powder Hill Road.  She noted people pass on the right and it is quite dangerous.  There would be 
an expansion of use with 6 commercial lots.  She is concerned the plans don’t address detention 
ponds, curb and gutter, width of the road and where the water runoff will go.  She is also 
concerned a septic and drain field will not work.   
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to close the Public Hearing on the first 
amendment to the Annexation Agreement, dated January 27, 2010, between the City of Galena 
and Joe Borsdorf, James Sullivan, Alexander Phillips, James Richards, Jo Ann Richards, or their 
grantees, heirs, successors or assigns, for a 33-acre subdivision at the intersection of US Route 
20 and Powder House Hill Road in Galena.        
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
Motion:   Lincoln moved, seconded by Bernstein, to open the Public Hearing on the Preliminary 
Plat for the Gateway Park Subdivision formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 

Page 5 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0046 – PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR THE GATEWAY PARK 
SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE SULLIVAN SUBDIVISION) 
 
Testimony:  Julie Hellman attorney for the applicants advised this is a preliminary plat for the 
Gateway Park Subdivision.  The plan is a proposed implemented concept.  The owners are 
committed to developing the land to be harmonious with the existing park and existing neighbors.  
They currently have one potential buyer for one lot.   
 
Linda Pluym – Pluym stated she has no problem with the development but feels the curb and 
gutters, etc. need to be taken care of.  Powder Hill Road washes out terribly and something 
needs to be done to keep it safe for everyone.   
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to close the Public Hearing on the Preliminary Plat 
for the Gateway Park Subdivision formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA16-03 
 
16C-0047 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
JANUARY 25, 2015 
 
16C-0048 – APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH JO DAVIESS COUNTRY FAIR 
CHARITIES, INC. FOR GALENA COUNTRY FAIR, OCTOBER 6-9, 2016 IN GRANT PARK 
 
16C-0049 – APPROVAL OF A REQUEST BY TRISTATE HISTORICAL PRESENTATIONS TO 
CONDUCT THE THIRD ANNUAL GRANT’S HOME FRONT EVENT IN DEPOT PARK, APRIL 
22-24, 2016 
 
16C-0050 – APPROVAL OF 2016 SWIMMING POOL WAGES, RATES, AND HOURS OF 
OPERATION 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Consent Agenda CA16-03 as presented.       
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
16C-0051 – WATER AND SEWER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT FROM 
AMERICAN WATER 
 

Page 6 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

Saylor reported on the November and December highlights.  A few water breaks and a few 
service line leaks.  The guys do what they do in the safest way possible.  They have lots of 
training. 
 
Saylor reported on the recent water problems in Flint, Michigan.  Saylor advised the lead is not in 
the water or the source of the water.  In 2010 and 2012 we did a complete water test on Well #6.  
At that time no lead was detected.  Since 2011 and every three years after that samples are 
taken from individual homes to test for lead and copper.  In 2011 one home had lead detection 
and 19 did not.  In 2014 there were three with lead detection and 17 undetected.  The lead gets 
into the water because the water can be aggressive on homes prior to 1986 or older.  These 
homes could have lead service lines, lead joints or brass used as part of the formula.  If the water 
sits in the lines, it will etch the lead out of those faucets.  Saylor advised our water is not 
aggressive.  Information with regard to lead in the water has been added to the City’s website.   
 
Fach questioned if the 36 percent water loss is national average.  Saylor advised it is on the high 
end.  Saylor stated his numbers and the billing numbers don’t always jive.  Last month was 6 
million gallons and the month prior was 9 million gallons.  If you look at a 12 month rolling 
average, the loss is about 26 percent.  The number is coming down.  We run a leak survey once 
per year.   
 
Lincoln questioned if it would be feasible to participate with the County and purchase the 
equipment.  Saylor advised the problem would be trying to find the time to operate it.  When the 
outside firm comes in they spend 3-5 days working on it.  Their charge is approximately $2,500.  
The equipment is in the $60,000-$70,000 range.   
 
16C-0052 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 
AMENDMENT TO AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO FOR A 33-
ACRE SUBDIVISION AT THE INTERSECTION OF US ROUTE 20 AND POWDER HOUSE 
HILL ROAD IN GALENA 
 
This item died for lack of a motion.   
 
16C-0053 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR THE 
GATEWAY PARK SUBDIVISION (FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE SULLIVAN SUBDIVISION) 
 
Alderman Hahn recused himself from action on this item.   
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the Preliminary Plat for the Gateway 
Park Subdivision formerly known as the Sullivan Subdivision.   
 
Discussion: The plat will subdivide this parcel into 6 commercial lots.   
 
Lincoln voiced concern with the private road.  He isn’t aware of any other instance that we have 
had that would be similar.  If this is the case, the city would not be responsible for maintenance 
and snow plowing of the private road.   
 
All six lots will be zoned planned commercial.  Fach questioned if this was simply agreeing to 
subdivide the lot.  He questioned if the concerns raised by Pluym have been addressed.   
 
Nack advised he doesn’t know if what is being presented completely meets the requirements of 
the preliminary plat.  It only shows the layout.  By approving the preliminary plat, the applicants 
will go forward and complete the final plat.  Looking at the preliminary plat we don’t know if all of 
the infrastructure has been addressed.   
 
Bernstein questioned if they are in a position to approve.  Nack advised typically the preliminary 
plant lays out everything, including infrastructure.  That is not shown on this plat.   
 
 

Page 7 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

 
 
Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator, advised the preliminary plat shows the breakdown of the 
lots, parcels and rows.  Tonight’s request is to go ahead and divide the parcel so they can sell.  
Any future development would need to go through proper zoning for site plan on the actual lot.  
Curb and gutter and street issues are addressed in the PUD.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Fach, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0054 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A LETTER OF INTENT REGARDING 
A UNIFIED DESTINATION MARKETING ORGANIZATION FOR JO DAVIESS COUNTY 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the letter of intent regarding a 
Unified Destination Marketing Organization for Jo Daviess County.   
 
Discussion:  Lincoln advised the committee of 3 council members and 3 county board members 
met about six times.  They talked over the issues and agreed to stick to the singular voice plan.  
This will be an agreement that we agree to enter into a unified destination marketing organization 
with the County and townships.  All in all Lincoln feels it will be great for the City and great for Jo 
Daviess County.   
 
Renner thanked the committee for their work, Mr. Hamilton for his input and all for a great job.  
While there is still a ways to go, this is a great start.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES: Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0055 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RENEWAL OF CONTRACT WITH 
VISITGALENA.ORG FOR DESTINATION MARKETING SERVICES 
 
Motion:  Lincoln moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the renewal of a contract with 
VisitGalena.org for Destination Marketing Services.   
 
Discussion:  Lincoln advised while things are moving along, they don't want to disrupt any 
services.  They would prefer to keep business going as it has been until a final agreement has 
been reached.  The City can choose to opt out when this happens.   
 
Moran advised there is no early termination clause in the contract.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0056 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY PRAIRIE RIDGE OF 
GALENA FOR A BUILDING PERMIF FEE REDUCTION FOR THE PLANNED SENIOR 
HOUSING PROJECT 
  
Hahn recused himself from action on this item. 
 
This item died due to lack of a motion.   
 

Page 8 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

16C-0057 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 5-YEAR STREET PROGRAM FOR 
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the 5-year street program for the 
Capital Improvement Plan.   
 
Discussion:  Hahn stated he likes the plan and hopes to see us do more and get better as we go 
on.  Westemeier is thrilled about all that is going to be done within the next 5 years.  He 
questioned if Elk between Division and Hill Street could be added as it isn't going to last five 
years.   
 

Fach brought up West Street.  He was advised part of West Street may be improved by the state 
with the Highway 20 project.   

 
Roll Call:  AYES: Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
16C-0058 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE FIRST ADDENDUM 
TO THE MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM MASTER AGREEMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the first reading, waive the second 
reading, of an ordinance authorizing the first addendum to the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System 
Master Agreement.    
 
Discussion:  The agreement will be in force upon approval.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES: Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
16C-0059 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve the Warrants as presented, 16C-0059.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Kieffer 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
16C-0060 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Body Cameras – Fach questioned if we have a policy in place which defines and explains how, 
when and who gets to watch the tapes.  Nack advised there is a policy in place which deals with 
everything.   
 
Thank you – Fach thanked all for their work on the Unified Destination Marketing Committee.  He 
hopes the County board looks at this as a great opportunity to get this done.   
 
Gear Street Foundation – Lincoln questioned if anything was being done with the foundation on 
Gear Street.  The back looks like it is falling in.  Steps need to be taken to get this taken care of.   

Page 9 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

 
Mutual Aid Agreement – Lincoln stated the Mutual Aid Agreement got him to thinking.  Last 
Monday night they had a representative from the Canadian National Railroad to a training.  They 
went on and on how well Galena handled the recent derailment.   
 
Unified Destination Marketing – Lincoln thanked the city and the county for the great effort in 
bringing the organizations back together.  Hopefully this is it and we can move forward.   
 
Thank you – Lincoln thanked Jim Rigdon, Mark Moran and staff for the Capital Improvement 
Plan.  People can see how we spend the money from the tax on streets.  He is hopeful it will 
continue on every year.   
 
Thank you – Bernstein thanked American Water for their help in pulling together the information 
with regard to lead in the water for the website.   
 
Thank you – Bernstein thanked the Unified Destination Marketing Committee for their hard work 
to bring the two organizations together.  It has been a long time in coming and she is pleased.   
 
Jail Hill Inn – Bernstein advised she went to the Jail Hill Inn open house.  It is a great facility and 
it was wonderful to see someone take an old historic building and turn it into something that is 
beautiful and a real asset to the town.   
 
16C-0061 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Thank you – Moran thanked Jeff Saylor for the water report.  In addition to the information that is 
included on the City’s home page, there is also a utilities page which shows the Consumer 
Confidence Report.  Any citizen can take a look at the detailed information any time.   
 
Gear Street Foundation – Moran advised Jonathan Miller has been working on that since his 
first day on the job.  There has been a lot of interaction.  The owner has cleaned out the 
foundation and is getting ready to get it on the market with the idea that a new owner will remove 
it.  An active enforcement project has been on going.   
 
16C-0062 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked the committees for doing a fine job.  He thanked Jeff Saylor from 
American Water for his report and wished the girls basketball team success in regionals.   
 
16C-0063 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Fach, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  
  The motion carried.  
 
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 

Page 10 of 57



Regular Board Meeting  08 February 2016 

City Clerk         

Page 11 of 57



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
  
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer and Janelle Keefer, Facility Manger   
 
DATE:      16 February 2016 
 
RE:  Turner Hall Kitchen Improvements 

Approval of Quotes 
 
 
As part of the ongoing improvements to Turner Hall, requests for quotes were sent to three contractors to 
complete upgrades to the kitchen exterior and associated work. One quote was received detailed as follows: 
 

Contractor  Amount $ 

White Construction  5,900 

 
The proposed work involves installation of a new roof to the kitchen, demolition of an old concrete wall 
adjacent to the kitchen and removal of a redundant fire escape at the south‐east corner of the building. 
 
The Galena Foundation has offered to pay for the above listed improvements. This project will proceed using 
the same policy as previous ones with the city paying for construction work and then be reimbursed by the 
Galena Foundation at a later date. 
 
We recommend the city council approves the quote of $5,900 from White Construction to complete kitchen 
improvements and associated work at Turner Hall.  

Page 12 of 57



Page 13 of 57



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO:     Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council, and Mark Moran 
 
FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    
  
DATE:      February 16, 2016 
 
RE:      Cool and Connected 
 
High‐speed, reliable internet service is imperative for any community to be economically competitive.  
While there are several internet options in Galena, I frequent receive inquiries from residents and 
businesses looking for faster and more reliable services.  About one year ago, I reached out to Jo Carroll 
Energy (JCE) CEO, Michael Hastings, to explore the possibility of JCE offering fiber optic high‐speed 
broadband in Galena.  Shortly thereafter, JCE communicated a concept plan to our staff for providing 
broadband in our downtown as a pilot project.  With a successful pilot project, the long‐term plan would 
be to extend the fiber‐based broadband to all homes and businesses in the community.   
 
At the meeting on Monday, JCE representatives will present their project and ask for the City of Galena to 
be a partner by providing access to the conduits under Commerce Street.  The conduits were installed in 
the early 2000’s during the Downtown Redevelopment Project in anticipation of future needs—like the 
proposed project.  In exchange for the use of the conduit, JCE is proposing to serve our City buildings with 
fiber‐based broadband as it becomes available at each building location.  They are committing to connect 
City Hall and the Police Department as part of the pilot project.  The proposed internet speeds will allow 
us to implement changes to our networks to improve the security of our data.   
 
JCE is also planning to submit an application to the “Cool and Connected” grant program offered by the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  Successful applicants will be 
provided technical assistance for planning broadband systems and sustainable community development.  
The following are examples of how the technical assistance could be focused. 
 

 Using new or existing broadband service to attract new types of businesses to main streets or 
existing rural communities. 

 Combining internet service with other local amenities to attract new investors, visitors, and 
residents. 

 Developing or marketing downtown Wi‐Fi zones. 
 Extending broadband service beyond anchor institutions in ways that promote main street 

development. 
 

JCE is requesting approval of the attached right‐of‐way agreement and a letter of support from the City of 
Galena for their application to the Cool and Connected program.   

Page 14 of 57



Page 1 of 5 
 

AGREEMENT FOR USE OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY  
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this ______ day of _______________, 2016, by and between the City 
of  Galena,  a  municipal  corporation  (the  “City”),  Jo‐Carroll  Energy,  Inc.  (NFP),  an  Illinois 
Cooperative (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Company is organized for the purpose of providing electric and gas distributions on a 
cooperative basis requiring construction, maintaining, and operating a backbone for 
communication with its substations as well as a wireless and fiber internet service network for 
its members and others (Services).  The goal of the project is to bring value‐added Services to 
unserved and underserved areas in our rural communities. 
 

2. The Company wishes to further enhance its Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
(SCADA), Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI), and internet service network by making 
connections within the City of Galena by installing fiber optic cable in conjunction with 
existing Company electric facilities. 
 

3. The Company submitted to the City Engineer of the City a request for permission to install 
fiber optic cable in conjunction with the right‐of‐way of existing Company electric facilities 
and other City‐owned property.  Right‐of‐way that is owned by other state and local 
agencies is not governed under this agreement.  

 

4. The City is willing to allow installation of the Company’s fiber optic cable under the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
     NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises of each of the parties to the other and 

the covenants contained herein, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 
1. Recitals.   The recitals are a material part of this Agreement and are incorporated herein by 

reference. 
 
2. Installation of Cable.   The City hereby grants to the Company the right to install and 

maintain fiber optic cable and related equipment in the right of way and property of the 
City in conjunction with existing electric facilities, subject to the terms of this Agreement. 
The City Engineer shall have the authority to approve minor deviations of the route upon 
written application of the Company. The City reserves any and all rights it has under law to 
require a franchise for services to properties located within the City. 

 
3. Use of City Duct System.  In lieu of any cost to grant the Company exclusive rights to utilize 

the City’s High Speed Internet (HSI) duct system for Service installations, the Company 
agrees to provide internet service, at a speed equivalent to 50x30 Mbps , to City facilities  

   

Page 15 of 57



Page 2 of 5 
 

located at 311 N Bench Street (Police Department), 101 Green Street (City Hall), and speed 
equivalent to 25x5 Mbps to City facilities at1801 Field Street (Public Works Facility), all in 
the city of Galena, Illinois, and continuing thereafter until termination of this Agreement as 
set forth below.  Should the location of either facility change during the term of the 
Agreement, Company agrees to provide internet service to the new location(s).  Should the 
City acquire internet service from a provider other than the Company, the Company shall 
not be obligated to continue to provide internet service to the City.  Company shall provide 
open access and prepaid WiFi, at a speed equivalent to 256k, in the Galena, downtown 
business district (“Downtown WiFi District”) and shall install appropriate equipment 
necessary, as available to Company, at strategic locations, some of which may be provided 
by the City.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the Downtown WiFi District shall extend at 
a minimum from 500 South Main Street, the full length of Main Street to Meeker Street.  
The above mentioned Services are subject to availability of fiber at those locations.  Existing 
Services already provided per the ‘Tower Occupancy Agreement’ between Company and 
City shall be exempt from this provision, until such fiber services become available at each 
listed location. 
 
 

4. Construction and Maintenance. 
 

A. Prior to installation of any cable in the City right of way or City property, the Company 
shall submit plans and specifications for the installation to the City Engineer. The cable 
shall be installed in conjunction with existing Company electric facilities and in such 
reasonable manner as approved by the City Engineer. 

 
B. A permit for work in the City right of way or City property shall be obtained before any 

work is commenced. The City shall waive any permit fee.  The Company shall provide 
any necessary or required traffic control at its expense. 

 
C. In all events, the cable shall be so located and maintained as to have minimum 

interference with the proper use of highways and to cause minimum interference with 
the rights or the reasonable convenience of property owners who adjoin any of said 
highways or other public utilities utilizing the right of way or property. As soon as the 
constructing, placing, replacing, repairing or removing of any of the cable is completed, 
all portions of the right of way or property which have been excavated or otherwise 
injured or obstructed thereby shall be placed in as good condition as before the 
commencement of the act. All excavation permits required by the City shall be obtained 
for work located within City right‐of‐way or City property. 

 
The cable shall be removed or relocated without expense to the City, when made 
necessary by change of grade, relocation or widening of any highway, or by reason of 
construction, installation of any structures or improvements by governmental agencies 
when acting in a governmental or proprietary capacity.  

 
D. The Company is responsible for providing JULIE locates for said fiber as directed by law 

for emergencies and non‐emergencies.  

Page 16 of 57



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
E. Upon failure to complete any work required by the provisions of this agreement to  be 

done on any highway to the reasonable satisfaction of the City, after providing the 
Company notice of said failure and a thirty (30) day time frame to commence 
completion, and if the Company fails to do so, the City may cause such work to be done 
and the Company will pay to the City the reasonable cost thereof in the itemized 
amounts reported by the City to the Company within 10 days after receipt of such 
itemized report.  
 

F. Emergency Repairs:  
 

i. The Company shall be responsible for the proper and safe protection of his 
work at all times during construction and maintenance.  The Company shall 
employ standard utility response protocols and best practices in response 
to emergency conditions that cause an unsafe condition to the public or 
hazard to a public facility. 

 
G. The project includes service connections to all Company member properties.  The 

properties to receive service connections may be modified by the Company.  The cost 
for installation, materials and labor to install necessary fiber‐optic lateral connection, 
equipment for a service connection and activation of connection to Company network 
will be borne by the Company, provided that the owners of the property enter into a 
service agreement with the Company.   

 
5. Third Parties.  The Company may not grant permission or licensure to third parties for use of 

the above described conduit within City right‐of‐way or City property without written 
permission of the City Council. 
 

6. Indemnification and Insurance.  The Company agrees to indemnify and save the City 
harmless from all loss sustained because of any suit, judgment, execution, claim, or demand 
whatsoever, resulting from negligence on the part of the Company in the construction, 
operation or maintenance the Services  in the City.  The City shall notify the Company within 
30 days after the presentation of any claim or demand, either by suit or otherwise, made 
against the City on account of any negligence as aforesaid on the part of the Company.  
During any construction, the Company or its contractor shall furnish the City as herein 
stated at its own expense, a general comprehensive liability insurance policy, in protection 
of City, its boards, commissioners, officers, agents and employees, by a company authorized 
to do business in the State of Illinois, protecting the City and said persons against liability for 
loss or damages for personal injury, death and property damage occasioned by the 
operations of the Company under this Agreement, with minimum liability limits of 
$3,000,000 for personal injury or death of any one person, and $3,000,000 for personal 
injury or death of two or more persons in any one occurrence, and $3,000,000 for damage 
to property. Company may satisfy this insurance requirement by naming the City to its 
existing insurance policy as an additional insured party. 
 

Page 17 of 57



Page 4 of 5 
 

7. Term. The right of way provided for herein shall exist for ninety nine (99) years so long as 
Company maintains compliance with the terms herein, and related City ordinances 
pertaining to right of way permits for similar installations.   
 

8. Remedies. Any violation by the Company, its contractors, or successors of the material 
provisions of this Agreement, shall be cause for the termination of this Agreement and all 
rights hereunder, provided that the City shall first notify the Company in writing, the 
condition or act on which the violation is charged, and the Company shall have 30 days 
within which to remedy such condition or act, and provided further, that should the 
immediate remedy thereof be out of the control of the Company, the Company shall have a 
reasonable time thereafter to make said correction. 

 
9. Notices. All notices herein provided for shall be sent prepaid registered mail addressed to 

the parties as follows: 
 

 
To the City:  City Administrator 

            101 Green Street, PO Box 310 
             Galena, IL 61016 

 
 
To the Company:  Jo‐Carroll Energy, Inc. (NFP) 

            Attention:  Michael Hastings 
      793 US Rte 20 W 
      Elizabeth, Illinois  61028 
 
   

 
10. Assignability. This Agreement and the rights granted hereunder shall not be assigned   by 

the Company without the approval of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena. 
 

11. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding on the parties, their successors, heirs and 
assigns. 

 
12. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid for any reason, such invalidation 

shall not affect other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the 
invalid provisions; and, to this end, the provisions of this Agreement are to be severable. 

 
   

Page 18 of 57



Page 5 of 5 
 

13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance    with 
the laws of the State of Illinois. 

 
 
                                                        CITY OF GALENA, a Municipal Corporation 
 
                                                        BY:_____________________________________ 
                                                                                         Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_________________________________ 
                            City Administrator  
 
                                                                            

Jo‐Carroll Energy, Inc. (NFP)                                        
                                                            

BY:__________________________________ 
                                                             

          Its: __________________________________ 
 
ATTEST:__________________________________ 
 
Its: ______________________________________ 
 
 

 

Page 19 of 57



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 18, 2016 

RE:    Chamber Lease of the Depot 
 
 
I am presenting the attached request from the Galena Area Chamber of Commerce to modify the 
terms of their lease with the City for the Depot building.  At this time, the Chamber is occupying 
only the first floor. The goals of the Chamber are to reduce their responsibilities and costs 
associated with their occupancy. 
 
The current lease agreement was executed in 2014 and extends to April 30, 2017.  The current lease 
contains the following provisions: 
 

1. The Chamber has occupancy of the entire building with the ability to sublease one floor 
2. The Chamber is responsible for gas and electric utility costs 
3. The Chamber is responsible for routine building maintenance not exceeding $1,500 

annually 
4. The Chamber is responsible for snow removal on the sidewalks while the City is 

responsible for plowing the parking lot 
5. The Chamber is responsible for maintaining the landscaped beds while the City is 

responsible for all grass mowing 
6. The Chamber pays $1 per year rent 

 
The current proposal includes the following changes to the lease: 
 

1. The City would be responsible for all utilities 
2. The City would be responsible for all property maintenance including the landscaped beds, 

snow removal from the sidewalks, and building maintenance 
3. The City would be responsible for supplying all paper products for the lower level public 

restrooms 
4. The Chamber would no longer be responsible for the upper level in any way 
5. The lease would be for a one‐year term 

 
I would be happy to prepare a report on the estimated costs to be incurred by the City should you 
choose to accept the changes.  Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 

 

Page 20 of 57



Page 21 of 57



Page 22 of 57



Page 23 of 57



Page 24 of 57



Page 25 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 

xXx Racing 

       

 

The Tour of Galena 2016 

 

17 February, 2016 

Galena City Council 
312 ½ North Main Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
Dear City Council members: 
 
xXx Racing is proud to propose a joint effort with Visit Galena and the greater Galena area in hosting the 
fifth annual Tour of Galena cycling stage race.  An event of this magnitude has proven to bring a positive 
financial and community‐building impact to the area, and we expect continued growth in year five.  We 
are again thrilled to partner with such an amazing and vibrant city to expose visitors to its beauty.    
 
xXx Racing is a large, Chicago‐based cycling team that competes in a variety of disciplines, including 
road, track, mountain bike, and cyclocross. Our members compete at all levels of the sport and are 
dedicated to promoting competitive and noncompetitive cycling in the Midwest. Our team provides a 
supportive environment for anyone with the desire to improve their fitness, increase their cycling 
knowledge, or strengthen their competitive spirit.  We have recently been named the USA Cycling 
Division I Team of the Year, our second time to win the award.    
 
The team was founded in 1999 by professional couriers who wanted to extend their cycling experience 
to organized racing. Since then, the team has grown to become one of the Midwest’s largest and most 
successful not‐for‐profit teams. Although we cherish our roots and maintain a program to introduce 
messengers to sanctioned racing, we welcome all Chicago cyclists and celebrate our diversity and 
inclusiveness. We have both an elite program and development programs for men, women, and juniors 
(see Exhibit E). Our core principles and mission statement best reflect who we are today and what we 
hope to accomplish in the years to come: 
 
“We strive to build bridges in our community through cycling—an activity that benefits body and soul. By 
weaving a social fabric and bringing people together, we are able to change lives and truly make a 
difference.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
                                    Core Principles 
 
1. Development at all levels 
xXx Racing provides junior through elite riders the support they require to become 
well‐developed cyclists and/or racers. 
 
(For further information, see Exhibit E.) 
 
2. Not exclusive 
Anyone with an enthusiasm for bicycling may become a member. 
 
3. Team focus on racing 
While some clubs are leisure‐pace based, xXx Racing is not. As our name suggests, 
our programs are geared toward helping riders develop and advance as racers. 
While non‐racers are welcome, they may find that our passion for racing is contagious. 
 
4. Community 
xXx Racing maintains a positive environment for riders of all types, creating a great 
sense of community as a team. Members develop lasting friendships. We also make 
every effort to make a positive impact in the greater Chicago area and throughout the Midwest. 
 
5. Commitment to outreach/diversity 
We strive to attract men, women, and juniors from diverse backgrounds and provide 
growth and learning opportunities in the forms of clinics and development programs 
for riders who may not have been exposed to racing in the past. 
 
6. Retention 
xXx Racing aims to retain racers as they advance through the United States Cycling 
Federation racing categories. Our philosophy of keeping riders integrated with the 
majority of the team allows for mentoring and learning opportunities that would 
otherwise not exist. 
 
 
                                                 Accomplishments 
 
Randy Warren, a national champion cyclist and nationally recognized level one team coach, guides and 
mentors our members from their first race to the world stage. Under Coach Randy Warren, xXx Racing 
team members have been awarded the following: 
 
 Paralympic Games and World Championship Medals 
 Over 25 National Championship Medals 
 More than 50 State Championship Medals 

   
(For further information, see Exhibit F.) 
 
 
 
 
 
                   What Is The 2014 Tour of Galena? 

Page 27 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
We propose to create a three‐day multi‐category cycling event centered in Galena, IL on June 10th, 11th 

and 12th, 2016.  The race format, called an omnium, requires each entrant to participate in three (four 

for P1/2) different events, each scored separately.  An overall event winner will be awarded for each 

category by combining the points earned by placing in the individual events.  The four events will consist 

of a Pro/1/2 circuit race, time trial, road race, and criterium race (see Exhibits A, B, C and D).  

 
Why a multi‐day, multi‐stage Event, in Galena? 
 
 There are many single‐discipline events in Illinois and the Midwest, but very few multi‐discipline, 

multi‐day events.  In keeping with our principle as a “development” team, we have seen the 
addition of an omnium race as a significant step toward developing more exciting and 
compelling racing in the area. 
 

 Being an avid bike racer requires travel, but very few destinations are interesting to the family 
and spouse of a racer.  Galena is uniquely positioned as a destination the whole family will 
enjoy, a town that embraces and values their visit, in a region that provides the challenging 
terrain and historic course options a racer will love.  The multi‐day, multi‐race format brings all 
of these together in a powerful way, to the mutual benefit of Galena and the cycling community. 

 
 By scheduling the Pro/1/2 circuit race on Friday afternoon, and hosting four different events 

over three days, we are able to assure that many visitors will require multiple room nights and 
additional meal and entertainment visits, thereby increasing revenue for Galena’s businesses. 

 
 By centering the racing in the downtown area, we encourage overnight guests to enjoy local 

restaurants, shopping, and recreational activities, as well as explore the rich history of Galena. 
 
Schedule 
 
Friday, 10 June 2016, afternoon: Pro/1/2 time trial and circuit race (See Exhibit A) 
 
Saturday, 11 June 2016, morning: individual time trial, 7 miles (See Exhibit B.) 
 
Saturday, 11 June 2016, afternoon: road race, 21‐mile loop (See Exhibit C.) 
 
Sunday, 12 June 2016, morning through afternoon: criterium race, .65‐mile loop (See Exhibit D.) 
 
Goals 
 
It is our hope to:  
 Establish a vibrant, fun, and competitive multi‐day, multi‐discipline event for cyclists in the 

Midwest. 
 In the long term, grow the event, ideally to a national level within 5 years to be included on the 

USA Cycling National Racing Calendar (tentatively planned for 2018). 
 Bring incremental revenue to the area through visitor use of lodging, restaurants, and 

attractions (recent evaluations show nearly $250,000 drawn). 
 Build community support so Galena residents and visitors want to see the race return. 
 Create a winning, safe, and organized race that riders and their families plan for and return to 

year after year. 
 

Page 28 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

                                      Plan of Attack 
 
Strategic planning 
 
 Plan for the current and future, with a working budget and future growth plans. 
 Establish entry fees for both the overall (Omnium Race), as well as individual stages. 
 Establish categories to attract large and competitive fields of riders, provide opportunities for 

women and juniors, and USA Cycling Junior Race Series points and rankings. 
 Plan race routes to be safe, competitive, and fun for spectators and riders. 
 Plan race routes to minimize impact on Galena’s traffic, parking, and business flow.  In pursuit of 

continued improvement, we will: 
o adjust the traffic flow and location of the feed zone at the top of Jo Daviess Road,  
o allow traffic to flow outbound from Galena in Field Street to Rec Park,  
o again schedule road race start for 1:00pm Saturday, to allow normal Saturday morning 

business flow on Water, Franklin, Commerce, Perry Sts, and around the Market House.   
o coordinate shuttle services for guests and employees from the Depot Lot and/or Galena 

High School 
 Secure financial support to allow for a significant and attractive prize purse. 
 Work with local police, sheriff, and emergency to make the courses safe for spectators, riders, 

and drivers. 
 Work with local organizations to provide volunteers and community support. 
 Provide opportunities for local businesses to get involved through sponsorship, in‐kind support, 

and presence at expos, start/finish complex, host hotel, etc. 
 
Event operations 
xXx Racing will oversee planning, set up, and execution of the race itself. Financial support will be 
needed. 
 
 Road closure coordination, in cooperation with local law enforcement. 
 Barriers, bleachers, and safety fencing. 
  Volunteer organization. 
 Start/finish set up, staging area, cameras, and officials stations. 
 Race registration, packet pickup, numbers, and timing devices (if needed). 
 Race officials. 
 Motorcycle referees. 
 Race day communications/radios. 
 Spectator transportation to and from designated parking areas. 
 Participant parking. 
 Office/administration, permits, and licenses. 
 Handicap accessibility.  
 Sanitary, refuse, and recycle stations.   

 
   

Page 29 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

Marketing: to Participant (to be accomplished in coordination with visitgalena.org) 
 
 Event Web site, including a race bible (manual); route maps; elevation gain charts; 

downloadable flyer; online registration; sponsor links; and links to and from xxxracing.org, 
visitgalena.org, and others. 

 Other Online Marketing: Facebook, Twitter, Chibikeracing.com; Competitor Magazine Chicago 
Web site; Chicago Athlete Magazine Web site; usac.org; xxxracing.org; visitgalena.org; cycling 
blogs; local race boards; and bike advocacy groups in St. Louis, Des Moines, Chicago, Madison, 
Milwaukee, Minneapolis, Omaha, and Champaign.  

 Print: flyer printing and distribution at bike shops in select markets, flyer bike races in the 
Midwest held in September through June. 

 Direct Mail: USAC license holder postcard mailing 
 E‐mail: E‐mail effort to the heads of teams and clubs in the Midwest, lists available through 

USAC, and through CBR, Active Transportation Alliance, etc. 
 
Marketing: to Visitor (we consult visitgalena.org for advice and execution help with spectator and visitor 
outreach) 
 
 Online 
 Print 
 Direct Mail 
 E‐mail 

 
Local business partnership opportunities 
 
 Local restaurant involvement for on‐site food and beverage vending. 
 Local restaurant opportunities to create on‐course viewing positions within their businesses. 
 VIP area, potentially sponsored. 
 Expo, with local retailer involvement with booth or special sales deals. 
 Sponsor product sales and distribution of race bags at host hotel. 
 Creation of festival on crit infield.  

 
Sponsorships 
 
 Local hotels, B & Bs, restaurants, and shops will all have an opportunity to participate in the race 

as sponsors of individual races, such as the Belvidere Mansion Women’s Professional Road Race. 
 There should be one (perhaps two) host hotels, which will be featured prominently and provide 

race organizers and officials lodging, as well as rider race weekend specials.  Packet pickup can 
be there, pre‐race banquet, current standings board, post‐race party, meet the professional, etc.  

 Chicago and local based product, retail, and shop sponsors will be utilized as much as 
possible.  xXx Racing team sponsors will also be engaged as soon as possible.   

  Local businesses or even individual families can support the race by donating in‐kind items, such 
as communications vehicles, race officials cars, pace cars, wheel trucks, and neutral support 
vehicles.   

 
 
   

Page 30 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
                        We the People 
 
Public relations, prior to race date 
 
 xXx Racing will go door to door in areas that are completely closed to vehicular traffic to 

personally introduce ourselves, building bridges and educating local residents.   
 xXx Racing, in participation with local outfitters (possibly The GOATS Cycling Club), will conduct 

local group rides to promote the race and build relationships. 
 xXx Racing will strive to host a camp in Galena, to both promote travel to the area and deepen 

our partnership with the town and its residents. 
 
 
 
                                   The Numbers 
 
Anticipated participant count 
 
Each year we’ve seen significant participation growth, and we anticipate continued double digit 
expansion, ideally more than 500 racers resulting in 1,200 – 1,500 total heads:  
 
 30% Family occupancy 
 20% Four‐people‐per‐room occupancy 
 50% Double occupancy 

 
Growth comparisons based on other races in the area, races of similar format, and destination races: 
 
 Roubaix (Hillsboro, IL): One‐day road race, 10th year, 800 riders. 

http://web.me.com/iccc_stl/Hillsboro/Welcome.html 
 

 Joe Martin Stage Race (Fayetteville, AR): NRC 4‐day pro race, 2‐day amateur race, 750 riders. 
http://www.joemartinstagerace.com/ 

 
 Tough (Tulsa, OK): 3‐day NCC criterium series, 1000+ participants and massive expo. 

http://www.tulsatough.com/site/sections/13 
 
 
                                                 Exhibits 
 
All race types are defined below (definitions adapted from Wikipedia) in Exhibits A‐D: 
 
Exhibit A ‐ Circuit Race (CR)  
 
What It Is: 
A Circuit Race is similar in style to a road race, but held on a course which is 5‐7 miles in length and 
competitors complete 5‐10 laps. 
 
Tour of Galena course: 
In 2016, we plan to use the same course as 2012‐2015, starting downtown at the Depot Lot, and rolling 
neutral out to a 7‐mile loop using Rocky Hill, Cemetery and Irish Hollow Roads.  Parking will be at the 
Depot Lot, and the Finish line will be on the loop. 

Page 31 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
Exhibit B ‐ Individual Time Trial (ITT)  
 
What It Is: 
An Individual Time Trial is a road bicycle race in which cyclists race alone against the clock.  Often, ITTs 
are referred to as “the race of truth,” since winning depends only on each rider’s strength and 
endurance, and not on help provided by teammates and others riding ahead who create a slipstream. 
 
How It Works: 
Individual Time Trial starting times are at equal intervals, usually 30 seconds to 60 seconds apart. The 
starting sequence is usually based on the finishing times in preceding races (or preceding stages, in the 
case of a multi‐stage race), with the highest‐ranked cyclist starting last. Starting later gives the racer the 
advantage of knowing what time he or she needs to beat (and also makes the event more interesting to 
spectators). Competitors are not permitted to draft (ride in the slipstream) behind other riders. Any help 
between riders is forbidden. The rider with the fastest time is declared the winner.   
 
Tour of Galena course: 
In 2016, we plan to use the same course as in the past, an out and back on Chetlain Lane, starting and 
finishing at the Tri‐State Christian School. 
 
Exhibit C ‐ Road Race (RR) 
 
What It Is: 
The term “road race” is usually applied to events in which competing riders start simultaneously, with 
the winner being the first to cross the line at the end of the course. 
 
How It Works: 
Though the objective of a race is quite simple – to be the first rider to cross the finish line – a number of 
tactics are employed. Tactics are based on the aerodynamic benefit of drafting, whereby a rider can 
significantly reduce the required pedal effort by closely following in the slipstream of the rider in front. 
Riding in the main field, or peloton, can save as much as 40% of the energy employed in forward motion 
when compared to riding alone. Some teams designate a leader, whom the rest of the team is charged 
with keeping out of the wind and in good position until a critical section of the race. This can be used as 
a strength or a weakness by competitors; riders can cooperate and draft each other to ride at high 
speed, or one rider can sit on a competitor’s wheel, forcing him to do a greater share of the work in 
maintaining the pace and to potentially tire earlier. A group of riders that breaks away from the peloton 
has more space and freedom, and can therefore be at an advantage in certain situations. Working 
together smoothly and efficiently, a small group can maintain a higher speed than the peloton, in which 
the remaining riders may not be as motivated or organized to chase effectively. Usually a rider or group 
of riders will try to break from the peloton by attacking and riding ahead to reduce the number of 
contenders for the win. If the break does not succeed and the body of cyclists comes back together, a 
sprinter will often win by overpowering competitors in the final stretch. Teamwork between riders, both 
pre‐arranged and ad‐hoc, is important in many aspects: in preventing or helping a successful break, and 
sometimes in delivering a sprinter to the front of the field. 
 
Tour of Galena course: 
In 2016, we plan to use the same course as in prior years, starting and finishing in front of the Old 
Market House in downtown.  The race course is a 21 mile loop, done between one and four times.  The 
Road Race course is a clear highlight of the Tour of Galena, and a big draw for riders. 
 
 

Page 32 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
Exhibit D ‐ Criterium (Crit) 
 
What It Is: 
A criterium, or crit, is a bike race held on a short course (usually less than 5 km), often run on closed‐off 
city center streets. 
 
How It Works: 
The race length can be determined by a total time or a number of laps, and the winner is the first rider 
to cross the line without having been “lapped.”. Generally the event’s duration (commonly between 30 
to 90 minutes) is shorter than that of a traditional road race, which can last many hours. However, the 
average speed and intensity of a crit are appreciably higher than those of a road race. 
 
Success in criteriums requires a mix of good technical skills — the abilities to corner smoothly while 
“holding your line” on the road, ride safely with a large group on a short circuit, “attack” other riders, 
and repeatedly accelerate hard from corners. Criteriums are relatively easy to organize, do not require a 
large amount of space, and are good for live spectators, as they allow them to see the riders pass by 
many times. They are the most common type of bicycle racing in the continental United States.  
 
Tour of Galena course: 
In 2016, we plan to use the same course as in prior years, starting and finishing in downtown Galena in 
front of the Old Market House.  The .65 mile course has proven very popular with riders, centering them 
close to the downtown restaurants and shops, with multiple prime spectating areas.   
 
Exhibit E ‐ xXx Racing’s Development Programs 
 
Juniors’ Development Program: 
This program enables juniors to participate in racing and training, as well as enjoy the 
benefits of belonging to a team, regardless of financial status. The team reaches out to 
juniors of all backgrounds, making it the most diverse juniors’ cycling program in the area. 
It is also recognized as one of the premier junior development teams in the nation by the 
United States Cycling Federation (USCF). 
 
Women’s Development Program: 
One of the region’s largest and most accomplished women’s development programs, 
the xXx Women’s Development Program provides women with coaching, training 
opportunities, and support to encourage them to develop their fitness and racing 
techniques. Members work with other area teams to promote women‐focused skills 
clinics and informational seminars. 
 
Men’s Development Program: 
The largest of the development programs, the Men’s Development Program exists to 
promote teamwork, skills, and camaraderie through monthly socials and focused group 
rides. The program helps new members meet established team members and gain a 
sense of direction in what can be an intimidating start. 
 
Elite Development Program: 
Riders who show extraordinary promise and commitment to the team can apply to 
participate in the Elite Development Program. These riders receive extra resources and 
individualized coaching and training. In return, participants are expected to help develop 
the next crop of athletes, creating an ongoing cycle of growth, learning, and excellence. 

Page 33 of 57



6415 N. Ravenswood #8 | Chicago, IL 60626 

 
Exhibit F ‐ Accomplishments 
 
Paralympians 
 
 Alison Jones 

2008: Silver medal, Individual Time Trial; Paralympic Games, Beijing, China 
 
 Greta Neimanas 

2008: U.S. Paralympic Team member, Cycling; Paralympic Games, Beijing, China 
2008: Gold medal, Road Time Trial, two Silver medals (500m Time Trial, Individual Pursuit); U.S. 
Paralympics      
Cycling National Championships, Morrison, Colorado 

 
Notable Athletes 
 
 Reid Mumford: Member of Kelly Benefit Strategies/Medifast Pro Cycling Team 
 Rebecca Much: Formerly of T‐Mobile and Webcor Builders Women’s Professional Cycling Team, 

now riding with TIBCO Women’s Pro Cycling 
 Heidi Sarna, Triathlete: Invited to Duathlon Worlds in 2009 
 John Tomlinson: USA Cycling Junior Track National Champion, 2009 
 Liam Donoghue: USA Cycling Elite National Silver medalist, individual pursuit, 2012 
 Nikos Hessert: USA Cycling Junior National Champion, track 2013, 2015. UCI World 

Championship team selection, tack 2015  
 
 
 
                    Until Next Time 
 
Overall, we are extremely excited to once again work with Galena. With community support, the will to 
succeed, and contributions from both Galena and xXx Racing, we know this event will continue to grow 
and have a larger community and financial impact on Galena.  As our mission states, “…we strive to build 
bridges…through cycling,” and we hope the community of Galena and xXx Racing can continue to 
develop a partnership that will make this event a resounding success! 
 
Please feel free to contact us with any questions or concerns. 
 
Regards, 
 
Tom Perotti and Ed Amstutz 
xXx Racing  
Race Directors – The Tour of Galena 
 
promoter@tourofgalena.com 
edamstutz@gmail.com / 312‐852‐7400 
tom.perotti@gmail.com / 312‐545‐1830  

Page 34 of 57



 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM: Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  February 17, 2016 

RE: Cal. No. 16A-01, Applicant:  Applicant:  City of Galena – 101 Green Street Galena, 
IL 61036.  Request for Text Amendment to §154.601(G)(1) Off-Street Parking and 
Traffic Circulation Design Standards, Surface and Marking and §154.601(G)(13) 
Alternative Parking Surfaces and Designs to allow alternative, sustainable surface 
improvements for parking areas by right upon approval of administrative site plan 
review. 

 
Project Summary: 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance is initiated by City Staff as an effort to facilitate more 
sustainable practices regarding private off-street parking surfaces and off-peak parking areas. 
 
Presently, the Zoning Ordinance’s Off-Street Parking and Traffic Circulation Design Standards 
require either an improved asphalt or concrete surface for parking areas at non-residential uses.  
As the City continues to increase its cognizance of sustainable practices when planning and 
developing, it seems appropriate to update our Ordinances in order to facilitate optimal processes 
in a responsible manner.   
 
The use of alternative paving surface materials has become more practical in recent years as 
technology continues to provide development of better products whose performance can 
withstand adverse conditions and maintenance standards where their predecessors could not.  
New improvements in low density polyethylene provide high compressive strengths with 
resilience and flexibility, allowing the surfaces to hold up well to periodic use and maintenance 
operations such as snow plowing.   
 
The primary application for such practices works well for smaller parking lots or areas of 
infrequent use.  Smaller expansion of parking areas, that would otherwise be permissible 
administratively if constructed with asphalt or concrete, are currently only allowed by special use 
permits for alternative surfaces.  I believe that this can be administratively approved at the Staff 
level in order to promote further implementation of new practices.  If there are proposed 
developments at a larger scale, then they will most likely require non-administrative review 
anyway.  Additionally, language has been added to the alternative surface paragraph, in this 
proposal, that gives the Staff the right to defer the approval decision to higher levels if needed. 
 
The cost of alternative surfacing, such as pervious pavers or geo-grids, still exceeds that of 
conventional paving.  This is due, in part, to higher cost of material and the potential added layers 

Page 35 of 57



of base needed for stabilization, bearing capacity and drainage facilities.  However, due to the 
potential infiltration of surface water (up to 95%), the higher cost of materials and installation 
could offset the otherwise needed cost to build or expand water detention facilities elsewhere on 
the site.   
 
Examples of different types of pervious pavers and geo-grids have been included in this packet for 
your reference. 
 
At their regular meeting on February 10, 2016, the Zoning Board of Appeals approved a positive 
recommendation to the Council to approve the Text Amendment as proposed. 
 
Approval Criteria & Recommendation: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed 
amendments to the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 
 
 
§154.920 ZONING CODE AMENDMENT AND REZONING 

(C)  Approval Criteria.  In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the 
following factors shall be considered: 

          (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 

          (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due 
to installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; 

          (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the 
capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, 
or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, 
water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances; 

          (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and 
the policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; 

          (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made 
available concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; 

          (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

          (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning. 

Page 36 of 57



The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and 
the City Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or 
expedient, additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change 
provided that this additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in 
accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line 
therefrom or by the owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed 
to be altered as to such regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such 
amendment shall not be passed except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the 
selected members of the City Council. 

Page 37 of 57

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Galena,%20Illinois%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A8c1b$cid=illinois$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_154.919$3.0#JD_154.919


Ordinance #O - 1__ - __ __ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 6, §154.601 – OFF-STREET  
PARKING AND TRAFFIC CIRCULATION STANDARDS OF THE  

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA 
_____________________________________________________________________   

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, JoDaviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
SECTION I:  Section § 154.601 (G)(1)  Off-street Parking and Traffic Circulation Standards, is hereby amended as 
follows: 
 
 (Additions are shown as underlined, deletions are strikethrough) 

 
 (G)  Off-street parking and traffic circulation design standards. 
      

(1)   Surface and marking.  All open off-street parking areas and driveways, except those accessory to single-
family dwellings, shall be improved with either six inches of compacted gravel base surfaced with two inches of 
asphaltic concrete, or five inches of concrete laid over a firm base, or alternative, pervious paving materials over an 
improved base that provides sufficient bearing capacity.  Parking areas intended for six or more parking stalls shall be 
marked in a manner which clearly indicates the required parking spaces. 

 
SECTION II:  Section §154.601 (G)(13) – Alternative Parking Surfaces and Designs, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 (Additions are shown as underlined, deletions are strikethrough) 
 

(G)  Off-street parking and traffic circulation design standards. 
 

(13)    Alternative parking surfaces and designs. For land uses with infrequent peak periods, such as, but not limited 
to, churches and other public assembly venues, alternative parking surfaces and designs may be approved as a special 
use upon administrative review of the site plan.  The Zoning Administrator may defer approval to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals as a special use, or a Non-administrative Highway Development Permit if the project is within the Highway 
Corridor Overlay District.  The alternatives may include pervious or semi-pervious surfaces and/or other methods 
intended to reduce the amount of paving required. To receive approval, the applicant shall clearly demonstrate the low 
frequency of peak use and that the alternative(s) proposed improve the overall quality and function of the site from both 
a development and natural resources protection perspective. In approving alternatives, the city may attach all conditions 
as necessary to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare are protected as intended in this section, including a 
requirement that the use of the approved alternative(s) be monitored at the applicant's expense and regular reports be 
provided to the city. The city shall also reserve the right to repeal its approval and require full compliance with all 
standards and regulations of this section if it finds the alternative(s) fails to function as anticipated. 

 
SECTION III: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 57



SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage and legal publication in 
pamphlet form. 
 
SECTION VII:  Passed on the __th day of________________, A.D., 201__, in open Council. 
 
 
 AYES:      NAYS:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
____________________________________                  _________________________________  
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR    MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  
 

Page 39 of 57



Page 40 of 57



Page 41 of 57



Page 42 of 57



Page 43 of 57



Page 44 of 57



Page 45 of 57



Page 46 of 57



Page 47 of 57



Page 48 of 57



Page 49 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084)
022216 1 Invoice RETIREMENT HEALTH B 02/22/2016 106.00 58.54.511.00

Total ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084): 106.00

AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005)
021516 1 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 02/15/2016 26,304.30 51.42.515.00
021516 2 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 02/15/2016 26,304.30 52.43.515.01

Total AMERICAN WATER ENTERPRISES (1005): 52,608.60

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
021516 1 Invoice POOL/PHONE 02/15/2016 27.41 59.55.552.00
021516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 02/15/2016 42.78 01.41.552.00
021516 3 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 02/15/2016 97.62 22.22.552.00
021516 4 Invoice EMS/PHONE 02/15/2016 27.41 12.10.552.00
021516 5 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 02/15/2016 614.28 01.21.552.00
021516 6 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 02/15/2016 31.80 22.22.552.00
021516 7 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 02/15/2016 218.00 01.13.552.00
021516 8 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 02/15/2016 27.41 20.25.515.00
021516 9 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 02/15/2016 120.63 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 1,207.34

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
021516 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 02/15/2016 1.14 01.41.552.00
021516 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 02/15/2016 .34 22.22.552.00
021516 3 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 02/15/2016 24.21 01.21.552.00
021516 4 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  02/15/2016 51.26 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 76.95

BURDESS, AMARA (120220)
020916 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 02/09/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total BURDESS, AMARA (120220): 200.00

CALLAHAN EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. (118944)
4920 1 Invoice LIFT INSPECTION 02/01/2016 304.75 58.54.511.00

Total CALLAHAN EQUIPMENT SERVICES, INC. (118944): 304.75

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
021516 1 Invoice TRAINING 02/15/2016 200.00 01.11.563.00
021516 2 Invoice MAYOR'S DISCRETIONA 02/15/2016 34.99 01.11.929.01
021516 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2016 108.78 01.13.651.02
021516 4 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 02/15/2016 21.24 01.16.563.00
021516 5 Invoice 2012 FORD 1 TON 02/15/2016 22.09 01.41.613.03
021516 6 Invoice MUTT MITTS 02/15/2016 245.00 17.52.652.00
021516 7 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2016 154.21 51.42.651.01
021516 8 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 02/15/2016 119.00 51.42.929.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 905.31

Page 50 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CARGILL, INC. (119097)
2902676981 1 Invoice SALT 02/04/2016 1,722.62 01.41.614.07
2902676982 1 Invoice SALT 02/04/2016 1,727.44 01.41.614.07
2902679121 1 Invoice SALT 02/05/2016 1,727.44 01.41.614.07
2902686815 1 Invoice SALT 02/10/2015 1,726.06 01.41.614.07

Total CARGILL, INC. (119097): 6,903.56

CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588)
182873 1 Invoice GARAGE MAINTENANCE 01/29/2016 74.00 01.41.511.00

Total CEDAR CROSS OVERHEAD DOOR (588): 74.00

CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909)
455829 1 Invoice GUN CLEANING MATERI 02/02/2016 202.42 01.21.652.02
462067 1 Invoice GUN CLEANING MATERI 02/11/2016 35.94 01.21.652.02

Total CHIEF LAW ENFORCEMENT SUPPLY (119909): 238.36

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
100301 1 Invoice CHIPS 01/29/2016 549.07 15.41.614.01

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 549.07

COPYWORKS (874)
111972 1 Invoice PRINTING 02/02/2016 166.00 52.43.553.00

Total COPYWORKS (874): 166.00

DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789)
4406 1 Invoice TREE/BRUSH 01/31/2016 3,380.00 01.41.517.02

Total DAN'S AERIAL SERVICE (119789): 3,380.00

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
968973 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 02/16/2016 235.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 235.00

EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950)
W00574 1 Invoice SWEEPER 02/04/2016 9,828.14 01.41.613.11
W00705 1 Invoice SWEEPER 02/04/2016 820.62 01.41.613.11

Total EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950): 10,648.76

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
62299 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 REPAIRS 01/13/2016 163.96 01.21.513.06
62470 1 Invoice SQUAD 3 REPAIRS 01/28/2016 26.31 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 190.27

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
0047262 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 02/02/2016 27.55 01.46.553.00

Page 51 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 27.55

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
013016 1 Invoice NEW STORAGE SHED 01/30/2016 582.77 22.22.840.05
013016 2 Invoice REPAIRS 01/30/2016 27.09 59.55.511.01

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 609.86

GALL'S, INC. (712)
004825140 1 Invoice LOCKOUT KIT/SQUAD 3 02/01/2015 74.49 01.21.513.06
004859157 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/Keith 02/08/2016 32.37 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 106.86

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
013116 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 30.58 01.21.651.00
013116 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 419.75 01.41.511.00
013116 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 2.06 01.41.613.05
013116 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 33.25 01.41.613.10
013116 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 45.38 01.41.613.12
013116 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 66.92 01.41.652.00
013116 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 10.60 01.41.653.00
013116 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 4.99 01.41.863.07
013116 9 Invoice TRASH CAN LINERS 01/13/2016 791.64 13.44.540.04
013116 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 199.00 17.52.652.00
013116 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 24.09 22.22.611.00
013116 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 38.31 22.22.830.00
013116 13 Invoice TRAINING CENTER 01/13/2016 110.24 22.22.840.05
013116 14 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 5.38 58.54.654.01
013116 15 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 54.25 58.54.820.00

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 1,836.44

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
72418 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 01/01/2016 85.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 85.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
021516 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 02/15/2016 240.00 01.13.511.07
021516 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  02/15/2016 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 465.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
022216 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  02/22/2016 4,361.00 01.218.0
022216 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  02/22/2016 396.00 01.218.0
022216 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 02/22/2016 29,329.96 01.13.451.00
022216 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 02/22/2016 1,014.15 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 35,101.11

Page 52 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99)
40712 1 Invoice REPAIR THERMOSTAT 02/01/2016 100.00 01.21.571.05
40715 1 Invoice REPAIR THERMOSTAT 02/02/2016 220.20 01.21.571.05

Total HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99): 320.20

IL FIREFIGHTER'S ASSOC., INC. (461)
16-2668 1 Invoice DUES 01/29/2016 200.00 22.22.929.00

Total IL FIREFIGHTER'S ASSOC., INC. (461): 200.00

JDWI (235)
40740 1 Invoice SR CIT TRANSPORT 01/31/2016 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
021516 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (ST. LIGHTS) 02/15/2016 622.84 15.41.572.00
021516 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 02/15/2016 382.18 01.41.571.01
021516 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 02/15/2016 167.83 17.52.571.01
021516 4 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 02/15/2016 77.69 22.22.576.01
021516 5 Invoice POOL 02/15/2016 308.44 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,558.98

JO DAVIESS CTY ANIMAL CONTROL (437)
012816 1 Invoice DOG PICKUP 01/28/2016 70.00 01.21.540.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY ANIMAL CONTROL (437): 70.00

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
012816 1 Invoice RECORDING FEE 01/28/2016 55.00 01.14.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 55.00

JOHNSON, NATHAN (119881)
021616 1 Invoice DRAGON SOFTWARE FO 02/16/2016 119.99 01.21.651.00

Total JOHNSON, NATHAN (119881): 119.99

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303873247 1 Invoice TOOLS 02/08/2016 241.53 01.41.653.00
9303879460 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 02/10/2016 56.74 01.41.613.06

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 298.27

MARISICH, KIMBERLY (120221)
020516 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 02/05/2016 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total MARISICH, KIMBERLY (120221): 200.00

MCMAHON, CHRIS (120219)
022216 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 02/22/2016 56.93 98.115.0

Page 53 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MCMAHON, CHRIS (120219): 56.93

MENARDS (280)
96140 1 Invoice ELECTRIC AT PUBLIC W 02/09/2016 33.98 01.41.511.00

Total MENARDS (280): 33.98

MEYER DRYWALL (120222)
012016 1 Invoice STORAGE BARN 01/20/2016 3,132.00 22.22.840.05

Total MEYER DRYWALL (120222): 3,132.00

MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653)
5316586 1 Invoice 2012 1-TON FORD PLOW 02/02/2016 118.18 01.41.613.03

Total MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC. (119653): 118.18

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
137052 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 02/01/2016 13,485.60 13.44.540.04
137052 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 02/01/2016 4,662.90 13.44.540.00
137052 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 02/01/2016 60.00 13.44.544.03

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,208.50

MORAN, MARK (922)
020616 1 Invoice ILCMA CONFERENCE 02/01/2016 293.96 01.11.562.00

Total MORAN, MARK (922): 293.96

MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69)
102223 1 Invoice TRAFFIC LIGHT REPAIR 11/04/2015 2,614.65 15.41.514.06

25124 1 Invoice ANNUAL CHECK OF TRA 12/11/2015 606.70 15.41.514.06

Total MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69): 3,221.35

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
2196812311 1 Invoice STARCOM RADIO CHAR 02/01/2016 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
89467 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 01/13/2016 116.90 01.41.652.00

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 116.90

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
013016 1 Invoice STERLING DUMP 01/30/2016 17.49 01.41.613.05
254558 1 Invoice FILTERS 09/11/2015 605.76 22.22.613.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 623.25

PAYMENT SERVICE NETWORK, INC. (120223)
2016012933 1 Invoice SETUP FEE FOR PSN 01/29/2016 399.00 51.42.532.00

Page 54 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total PAYMENT SERVICE NETWORK, INC. (120223): 399.00

PERCS INDEX INC, THE (492)
31232 1 Invoice SERVICE CONTRACT 01/29/2016 500.00 01.21.652.03

Total PERCS INDEX INC, THE (492): 500.00

QUILL CORP. (686)
2908335 1 Invoice INVESTIGATIONS/PROG 01/29/2016 192.99 01.21.652.03

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 192.99

RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009)
315031 1 Invoice 2011 1 TON 01/20/2016 74.92 01.41.613.04

Total RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009): 74.92

SECRETARY OF STATE (515)
021716 1 Invoice TITLE FEES 02/17/2016 95.00 01.21.655.00

Total SECRETARY OF STATE (515): 95.00

SENSUS METERING USA (287)
ZA16013293 1 Invoice REPAIRS 02/09/2016 414.41 51.42.831.00

Total SENSUS METERING USA (287): 414.41

SHEEHAN AUTO ELECT. CORP (268)
221285 1 Invoice BACKHOE STARTER 02/04/2016 290.72 01.41.613.07

Total SHEEHAN AUTO ELECT. CORP (268): 290.72

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
013116 1 Invoice FUEL 01/13/2016 794.83 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 794.83

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954)
0117840 1 Invoice PV DESIGN 02/09/2016 1,200.61 01.45.532.00

Total STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954): 1,200.61

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)
022216 1 Invoice POSTAGE 02/22/2016 42.41 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 42.41

TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154)
103999 1 Invoice PRESERVATION AWARD 09/22/2015 8.00 01.46.563.01
105339 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/28/2015 42.00 01.41.652.04

Total TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154): 50.00

Page 55 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
4056 1 Invoice TRAINING CENTER POR 01/31/2016 100.00 22.22.820.00
4063 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL/PORTA POTT 01/31/2016 100.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 200.00

US BANK TRUST (BOND) (577)
4200195 1 Invoice BOND FEES 01/25/2016 450.00 01.13.730.00

Total US BANK TRUST (BOND) (577): 450.00

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
6729 1 Invoice GET WELL PLANT 02/13/2016 40.00 01.21.549.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 40.00

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
021516 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 02/15/2016 76.02 22.22.655.00

9759737096 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  02/01/2016 38.01 01.21.652.03

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 114.03

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
012816 1 Invoice PLAQUE 01/28/2016 150.00 17.52.820.06

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 150.00

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
021516 1 Invoice DOG FOOD 02/15/2016 7.97 01.21.540.00
021516 2 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2016 330.66 01.21.651.00
021516 3 Invoice CLOTHING 02/15/2016 56.77 01.41.471.09
021516 4 Invoice SUPPLIES 02/15/2016 36.17 01.41.652.00
021516 5 Invoice TOOLS 02/15/2016 14.96 01.41.653.00
021516 6 Invoice SNOW SHOVELS 02/15/2016 32.92 17.52.652.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 479.45

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
632795 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 02/11/2016 120.61 01.13.511.06

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 120.61

WEX BANK (119104)
020116 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 02/01/2016 878.30 01.41.655.00
020116 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 02/01/2016 163.93 17.52.655.03
020116 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 02/01/2016 849.96 01.21.655.00
020116 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 02/01/2016 18.18 01.46.655.00
020116 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 02/01/2016 99.97 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,010.34

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
012816 1 Invoice VACCUUM FOR GARAGE 01/28/2016 100.00 01.41.511.00
021516 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 02/15/2016 350.00 58.54.536.00

Page 56 of 57



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 2/9/2016 - 2/29/2016 Feb 18, 2016  01:17PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 450.00

Grand Totals: 153,565.60

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3968061
Vendor number hash - split: 6127705
Total number of invoices: 77
Total number of transactions: 130

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 153,565.60 153,565.60

Grand Totals: 153,565.60 153,565.60

Page 57 of 57


	00.00 Agenda 02.22.16xx
	00.0070 Minutes cc020816
	01.0071 Turner Hall Kitchen Roof
	02.0074 Midwest Medical Fun Run
	03.0075 JCE Broadband Agreement
	022216a
	JCE Broadband Agreement
	JCE Fiber Broadband
	JCE Agreement


	04.0077 Depot Lease
	Depot Lease
	022216b
	Chamber Lease

	Depot Building Lease 2014-17

	05.0078 Tour of Galena 2016
	06.0079 Alternative Paving
	07.080 Warrants 02.22.16



